

1977 Assembly Bill 300

Date published: May 15, 1978

CHAPTER 325, Laws of 1977

AN ACT to amend 13.09, 13.111 (1) (a) and (b), 13.123 (3), 13.45 (1), 13.47 (intro.), 13.48 (2) (a), 13.50 (1) (a) and (1m), 13.52 (1) (a), 13.53 (1), 13.54 (1), 13.565, 13.80 (1) and (3), 13.81 (1), 13.83 (1), 13.84 (2) (a), 14.017 (1) (c) and (d) and (2), 14.82 (1) (intro.), 15.105 (2) and (5), 15.227 (5) (c), 15.287 (3), 15.467 (1) (c), 15.57, 15.61, 15.917 (1), 33.02 (1), 39.76 (1), 101.955, 110.06 (2), 110.075 (6), 144.50 (10), 146.35 (8), 194.41 (4), 234.02 (1) and 758.13 (1); and to create 13.46 and 13.80 (2) of the statutes, relating to service on statutory bodies by members of the legislature, and reimbursement of legislators for actual and necessary expenses.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. 13.09 of the statutes is amended to read:

13.09 Joint committee on finance. A (1) There is created a joint standing committee, to be called known as the joint committee on finance and to consist, consisting of 14 members, 7 from the senate senators and 7 from representatives to the assembly, shall be appointed as are the members of other standing committees in their respective houses.

(2) The ~~cochairmen committee's cochairpersons~~ may appoint a subcommittee on small appropriations and claims, consisting of ~~committee members chosen from the committee membership~~. The subcommittee shall meet and, ~~to hold hearings at the direction of the committee and report its recommendations to the committee~~. The ~~subcommittee may act on bills not exceeding \$10,000 and claims not exceeding \$2,500 and report its recommendations to the committee~~.

SECTION 2. 13.111 (1) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.111 (1) (a) Senate ~~cochairman cochairperson~~, joint committee on finance.

(b) Assembly ~~cochairman cochairperson~~, joint committee on finance.

SECTION 3. 13.123 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.123 (3) ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS. Any ~~member of the legislature authorized by the governor, or senators so senator~~ authorized by the committee on senate organization ~~to attend a meeting outside the state capital, or representatives any representative~~ to the assembly ~~so authorized by the committee on assembly organization for to attend an out-of-state meetings meeting or authorized by the speaker for meetings to attend a meeting~~ within this state ~~outside the state capital~~, and all members of the legislature required by law, ~~by legislative rule or by~~, resolution or joint resolution to attend ~~such meetings other than sessions of the legislature or to represent this state in their official capacity~~, shall be paid no additional compensation for such services but shall be reimbursed ~~their~~ ~~for~~ actual and necessary expenses from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (1) (a), but no legislator may be reimbursed under this subsection for expenses on any day for which ~~he the legislator~~ submits a claim under sub. (1). Any expenses incurred by a legislator under s. 14.82 shall be reimbursed from the appropriation under s. 20.315.

SECTION 4. 13.45 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.45 (1) TERM; ELIGIBILITY; VACANCIES. (a) Unless otherwise provided by law, the terms of all legislator members of ~~legislative committees or committees other bodies established by statute~~ on which there are legislator members ~~selected by either house or the officers thereof appointed as are the members of standing committees in their respective houses~~, shall expire on May 1 of each odd numbered year ~~the date specified in s. 13.02 (1)~~. This provision shall not apply to the standing, special or select committees of each legislature which shall expire with the sine die adjournment of the legislature by which created or with the convening of the next succeeding legislature, whichever is earlier; but ~~Unless otherwise provided by rule or resolution, any special or select legislative committee and the memberships thereof shall expire even earlier if upon the accomplishment of the purpose for which it the committee was created has been accomplished or the termination of the legislative session biennium in which the committee was created.~~

(b) ~~If a member of the legislature, A legislator's membership, on any committee or other body established by statute to which the legislator was appointed to any committee by reason of such membership, ceases to be being a member of the legislature, his membership on the committee terminates on the day he when such person ceases to be a legislator.~~

(c) ~~Vacancies Legislator vacancies on committees or other bodies established by statute, including first appointments upon the creation of such committees or bodies, shall be filled as are original appointments, but if a vacancy occurs after the sine die adjournment of the legislature or during any adjournment for a specific period of at least 30 days, in any position held by a legislator on a committee then functioning, and no provision for filling such vacancy exists by law or the existing provisions cannot be exercised, the legislative council may fill such vacancy, and such appointment shall expire as do the original appointments. This provision shall not affect s. 17.20 (2) at the commencement of the legislative session biennium.~~

SECTION 5. 13.46 of the statutes is created to read:

13.46 Majority and minority parties. Wherever any law or legislative rule refers to the majority party or minority party, "majority party" means the political party in each house of the legislature which has the most members and "minority party" means the political party in each house which has the 2nd most members. Any reference to the "2 major political parties" means the majority party and the minority party in each house. Any reference to "majority leader" or "minority leader" means the leader elected by the majority party and minority party, respectively, in each house.

SECTION 6. 13.47 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.47 Legislative state supported programs study and advisory committee. (intro.) There is created a joint legislative state supported programs study and advisory committee, consisting of 5 senators and 6 representatives to the assembly, appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses. The 2 major political parties shall be represented in the membership from each house.

SECTION 7. 13.48 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 26, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

13.48 (2) (a) There is created a building commission consisting of the governor, who shall be chairman serve as chairperson, and 6 members of the legislature of whom 3 shall be from each house, to be senators and 3 representatives to the assembly appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses. The 2 major political parties shall be represented in the membership from each house. Of the members appointed from either house, one One legislator from each house shall be a member of the state supported programs study and advisory committee created by s. 13.47. One citizen member shall be appointed by the governor to serve at the governor's pleasure of the governor. The secretary, head of the engineering function, and the ranking architect in of the department of administration, and the secretary of administration shall be nonvoting advisory members. The terms of all legislative members shall expire on the 2nd Wednesday in January of the odd-numbered year. The members shall act without liability except be liable only for misconduct. Members Nonlegislator members of the commission who are not members of the legislature shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses, incurred as members of the commission, from the appropriation made by under s. 20.505.

SECTION 8. 13.50 (1) (a) and (1m) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.50 (1) (a) Two majority party senators, one minority party senator, 2 majority party representatives to the assembly and one minority party representative to the assembly, appointed as are the members of standing committee members of the committees in their respective houses.

(1m) OFFICERS. The officers of this committee shall be a senate chairman cochairperson and vice chairman cochairperson, and an assembly chairman cochairperson and vice chairman and a secretary. The senate chairman and vice chairman shall be cochairperson selected as are chairmen and vice chairmen the officers of senate standing committees. The assembly chairman and vice chairman shall be appointed by the speaker. The secretary shall be in their respective houses, and a secretary elected by the committee from among its nonlegislator members.

SECTION 9. 13.52 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.52 (1) (a) Two members of the most populous political majority party and senators, one member of the next most populous political minority party in the senate and senator, 2 members of the most populous political majority party representatives to the assembly and one member of the next most populous political minority party in representative to the assembly, selected as are the members of standing committee members of the committees in their respective houses;

SECTION 10. 13.53 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.53 (1) CREATION. There is created a joint legislative audit committee to consist consisting of 8 members, 4 from the senate and 4 from 2 majority and 2 minority party senators and 2 majority and 2 minority party representatives to the assembly,

appointed as are the members of the standing committees in the their respective houses at the commencement of each term of the legislature. The members appointed from each house shall consist of 2 members chosen from the party having the greatest number of members and 2 members chosen from the party having the 2nd greatest number of members in that house. Each. In making the appointments, each house shall designate a cochairperson. The method of appointment of the cochairperson and other members in each house shall be governed by the rules thereof. The committee shall be staffed in the same manner as are other standing committees of the legislature. The committee shall meet as often as may be necessary during and between legislative sessions to perform its duties and functions.

SECTION 11. 13.54 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.54 (1) CREATION. There is created a commission on interstate cooperation in the legislative branch to consist of the governor or his the governor's designee, the lieutenant governor, the members of the joint committee on legislative organization and, in addition speaker of the assembly, the president pro tempore of the senate, the majority leader and the minority leader of each legislative house, 3 senators and 3 representatives to the assembly appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses, the executive secretary of the legislative council, the chief of the legislative reference bureau, and 2 state officials to be appointed by the governor. Subject to approval by If the joint committee on legislative organization approves, each legislator member of the joint committee may nominate name another legislator of his or her house and political party to serve on the interstate cooperation commission in his or her place as an alternate voting member. Subject to s. 14.40 (6), alternates to attend for specific meetings may be chosen as are persons to fill vacancies, and their terms shall expire when their mission is missions are accomplished.

SECTION 13. 13.565 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 26, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

13.565 Legislative approval of certain rules. (1) Prior to the establishment of adopting any rules rule relating to animal waste treatment, the state agency proposing the rules rule shall submit the rules it to the a senate and an assembly committee on committee dealing with agriculture. A The committees shall hold a public hearing shall be held before the committees to review the proposed rules rule. The rules rule shall enter into take effect only upon approval as by a joint resolution by each house of the legislature.

(2) Prior to the establishment of adopting any rule relating to the priority system for removal or relocation of highway signs under s. 84.30 (14), the state agency proposing the rules rule shall submit the rules it to the a senate committee on commerce and to the an assembly committee on dealing with tourism. A The committees shall hold a public hearing shall be held before the committees to review the proposed rules. The rules will go into rule and the rule shall take effect as soon as approved only upon approval by the members of the assembly committee on tourism and the senate committee on commerce both committees.

SECTION 14. 13.80 (1) and (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 3, laws of 1977, are amended to read:

13.80 (1) The joint committee on legislative organization created by the joint rules of the legislature, hereafter referred to as the joint committee on legislative organization, is constituted There is created a permanent joint committee on legislative committee organization with such powers and authority as are provided by law or by the legislature.

(3) The joint committee on legislative organization shall be the policy making board for and in general supervise the operation of and make policy for all legislative staff services of the legislature.

SECTION 15. 13.80 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

13.80 (2) The committee shall consist of the speaker of the assembly, the president pro tempore of the senate, and the majority and minority leaders and assistant majority and minority leaders of the 2 houses.

SECTION 16. 13.81 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

~~13.81 (1) CREATION. There is created a joint legislative council of 19 members to consist consisting of the members of the joint committee on legislative organization speaker and speaker pro tempore of the assembly, the president pro tempore of the senate, the speaker pro tempore of the assembly the senate and assembly majority and minority leaders, the 2 cochairmen cochairpersons of the joint committee on finance, the ranking minority member of the joint committee on finance from each house, and, in addition, 3 senators and 5 representatives to the assembly appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses. The appointive members shall be selected so that each congressional district of the in this state is represented on the joint legislative council by at least one member. The terms of all members shall expire on May 1 of the each odd-numbered year. In the case of appointive senate members, vacancies occurring while the legislature is not in session shall be filled by the president pro tempore of the senate.~~

SECTION 17. 13.83 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

~~13.83 (1) REMEDIAL LEGISLATION COMMITTEE. The council shall in each biennium create elect a committee of 3 legislators, including at least one member from each house, to be known as the committee on remedial legislation, which shall to consider such minor substantive correctional remedial measures proposed by the various state agencies of state government as will to improve the administration of their offices agencies. The committee on remedial legislation shall meet at intervals when the legislature is not in actual session and invite the state agencies of government to submit their such proposals of desirable minor substantive correctional measures to it at such meetings least once in each legislative biennium. The committee shall introduce in the house in which of the chairman is a member chairperson those requested proposals which they consider it considers desirable minor substantive correctional remedial measures. The title and authorship of each such proposal shall indicate the requesting agency requesting the change. The revisor of statutes shall serve as the committee's nonvoting secretary of the committee on remedial legislation.~~

SECTION 18. 13.84 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

~~13.84 (2) (a) Three Two majority party senators and 3, one minority party senator, 2 majority party representatives and one minority party representative to the assembly, at least one of whom shall be from each political party in each house, appointed as are the members of standing committees of in their respective houses;~~

SECTION 19. 14.017 (1) (c) and (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

~~14.017 (1) (c) Three members representatives to the assembly, appointed as are the members of assembly standing committees, from who serve on any assembly standing committee having jurisdiction over dealing with transportation matters.~~

~~(d) Two members senators, appointed as are the members of senate standing committees, from who serve on any senate standing committee having jurisdiction over dealing with transportation matters.~~

SECTION 20. 14.017 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 29, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

~~14.017 (2) COUNCIL ON ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUG ABUSE. There is created in the office of the governor a council on alcohol and other drug abuse consisting of the governor, the attorney general, the state superintendent of public instruction, the secretary of health and social services and the chairman chairperson of the pharmacy examining board, or their designees; a representative of the controlled substances board; a consumer representing the public at large; a representative of an organization or agency which is a direct provider of services to alcoholics and other drug abusers; and 2 members of each house of the legislature, representing the major majority party and the next most numerous minority party in each house, chosen as are the members of standing committees in their respective houses. Section 15.09 applies to the council.~~

SECTION 21. 14.82 (1) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 29, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

14.82 (1) MINNESOTA-WISCONSIN. (intro.) There is created a commission of 5 citizens nominated by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, for staggered 5-year terms of 5 years, to ~~constitute the representation of represent~~ this state on the joint Minnesota-Wisconsin boundary area commission. ~~Vacancies Any vacancy~~ shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term. ~~In order to To assist the commission in the execution of its functions,~~ there is further created a legislative advisory committee comprising 4 senators and 6 representatives to the assembly appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses, and ~~there is further created a technical advisory committee consisting of~~ 2 members appointed by the governor and of one member each appointed by the governing board or head of ~~each~~ of the following agencies, to represent such agencies: the department of justice, the department of administration, the department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection, the department of natural resources, the department of health and social services, the public service commission and the department of local affairs and development. The members of the commission and the members of its advisory committees shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, from the appropriation made by s. 20.315 (1), on vouchers approved by the Wisconsin member of the commission selected to serve as its chairman chairperson or vice chairman chairperson. All other expenses incurred by the commission in the course of exercising its powers and duties, unless met in some other manner specifically provided by statute, shall be paid by the commission out of its own funds.

SECTION 22. 15.105 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 29, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

15.105 (2) CLAIMS BOARD. There is created a claims board ~~which is~~, attached to the department of administration under s. 15.03. ~~The claims board shall consist, consisting of~~ a representative of the office of the governor designated by the governor, a representative of the department of administration designated by the secretary of administration, a representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general and the chairman chairpersons of the senate and assembly committees on finance or their designees appointed at the commencement of each legislative biennium from the membership of the their respective committees on finance.

SECTION 23. 15.105 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.105 (5) STATE CAPITOL AND EXECUTIVE RESIDENCE BOARD. There is created a state capitol and executive residence board ~~which is~~, attached to the department of administration under s. 15.03. ~~The board shall consist, consisting of~~ the secretary of administration or his the secretary's designee, the director of the historical society, the head of the engineering function in the department of administration or his or her designee, 3 members of the senate senators and 3 members of representatives to the assembly appointed as are the members of standing committees in their respective houses, and 6 citizen members, appointed for staggered 6-year terms of whom at least 2 shall be architects licensed in this state and 3 shall hold membership in the American institute of be interior designers, appointed for staggered 6-year terms.

SECTION 24. 15.227 (5) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.227 (5) (c) ~~Two senators One majority and one minority party senator and one majority and 2 representatives one minority party representative~~ to the assembly, ~~each representing one of the 2 major political parties in each house~~, appointed as are the members of standing committees in each house their respective houses.

SECTION 25. 15.287 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.287 (3) COUNCIL ON EMERGENCY GOVERNMENT. There is created in the department of local affairs and development a council on emergency government consisting of the governor as chairman chairperson, the lieutenant governor, as vice chairman chairperson, the administrator and an employe designated by him of the division of emergency government and one employe of the division designated by the administrator, one senator and one representative to the assembly appointed as are the

members of standing committees in their respective houses, a recognized civic leader for each civil defense area of this state selected by the governor and 5 heads of civil defense services selected by the administrator of the division of emergency government.

SECTION 26. 15.467 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

~~15.467 (1) (c) Two senators One majority and one minority party senator and one majority and 2 representatives one minority party representative to the assembly, including a member of the minority party from each house, appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses.~~

SECTION 27. 15.57 of the statutes is amended to read:

~~15.57 Educational communications board; creation. There is created an educational communications board to consist consisting of the governor, the state superintendent of public instruction, the executive head president of the university of Wisconsin system and the director of the board of vocational, technical and adult education, or their designees, and; 8 members appointed for 4-year terms, of whom 4 shall be citizen members and one each shall be a representative of private higher education, a representative of private or parochial elementary or secondary education, a professional representative of public elementary and secondary education and a representative of a public school board of a district operating elementary and high school grades; and legislative members consisting of one member of the majority membership and one minority party senator and one majority and one from the minority membership of each house of the legislature selected the same way as members are party representative to the assembly, appointed to as are the members of standing committees of those in their respective houses.~~

SECTION 28. 15.61 of the statutes is amended to read:

~~15.61 Elections board; creation. There is created an elections board consisting of persons who shall be appointed by the governor for 2-year terms as follows: one member shall be selected and serve at the pleasure of by the governor; one member each shall be designated by the chief justice of the supreme court, the speaker of the assembly, the senate majority leader of the most numerous party in the senate, the minority leader of the 2nd most numerous party in each house of the legislature, and the chief officer of each political party as defined in s. 5.02 (12) whose candidate for governor received at least 10% of the vote in the most recent gubernatorial election.~~

SECTION 29. 15.917 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

~~15.917 (1) ADULT EDUCATION CENTER COUNCIL. There is created in the university of Wisconsin system an adult education center council. The council shall consist consisting of 3 public members representing agriculture, business and organized labor, respectively; 2 members appointed by the president of the university of Wisconsin system; and one senator and one representative to the assembly appointed as are the members of standing committees in the their respective houses. The members appointed by the governor and the president of the university system shall serve staggered 5-year terms.~~

SECTION 30. 33.02 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 26, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

~~33.02 (1) RULES. The department shall adopt such rules as are necessary to carry out administer this chapter, including rules on administration of financial aids to districts, but such rules a rule shall not take effect until submitted to the a senate and an assembly committees on natural resources and committee dealing with agriculture and the a senate committees on and an assembly committee dealing with natural resources and agriculture. It Such rules shall provide for the administration of financial aids to districts and shall prescribe data to be secured, methods of analysis and evaluation, duration of data gathering and other technical regulations for the efficient administration of the program and efficient intergovernmental organization.~~

SECTION 31. 39.76 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.76 (1) STATE REPRESENTATION ON THE EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES. There is created a 7-member delegation to represent the state of Wisconsin on the education commission of the states. The delegation shall consist of the governor, the state superintendent of public instruction, one member of the assembly senator and one member of representative to the senate assembly selected by the as are the members of standing committees in their respective houses and serving in such manner as the legislature determines, and 3 members appointed by the governor in compliance with Article III (A) of the compact under s. 39.75 who shall serve at the pleasure of the governor. The chairman chairperson of the delegation shall be designated by the governor from among its members. Members of the delegation shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties from the appropriation in s. 20.505 (5) (a). Annual commission membership dues shall be paid from the appropriation in s. 20.505 (5) (a).

SECTION 32. 101.955 of the statutes is amended to read:

101.955 Notice, hearing and legislative review. All rules prescribed A copy of each rule or amendment to a rule adopted by any department under ss. 101.90 to 101.96 shall become effective only after notice, hearing and publication as provided under ss. 227.02 to 227.027. A copy of every rule or amendment to a rule proposed by an agency under ss. 101.90 to 101.96, shall be forwarded to the speaker of the assembly and to the president of the senate for referral to and review by the appropriate standing committee of the assembly and of the senate each house as determined by the respective presiding officer of each. The Each standing committee shall, within 60 days from the receipt of such proposed rule or amendment, approve or disapprove any such proposed rule or amendment. Failure the proposal, but failure of the a standing committee to disapprove any proposed rule or amendment such proposal within the review time shall constitute approval thereof. If the standing committees of both the senate and the assembly disapprove any proposed rule or amendment the agency shall not adopt the proposed rule or amendment. Only in the absence of a disapproval the agency shall proceed with the adoption of the rule or amendment in accordance with this chapter. Any rule or amendment shall become effective only upon the approval of both committees. This section shall not apply to emergency rules issued under s. 227.027.

SECTION 33. 110.06 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 29, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

110.06 (2) The secretary shall adopt and enforce such rules as he or she deems necessary in the interests of safety to cover the design, construction, inspection and operation of school busses. Such rules may, but need not, be uniform for each type of bus designated in s. 340.01 (56) (a). No A rule adopted under this subsection shall not become effective until approved by majority votes of the a senate commerce committee and the an assembly committee dealing with transportation committee.

SECTION 34. 110.075 (6) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 29, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

110.075 (6) The secretary shall set standards and promulgate adopt rules to establish a plan of inspection to implement the inspection program provided by this section, and he shall submit such. Such standards and rules, and any subsequent changes therein thereto, shall not take effect until submitted to the assembly and approved by a senate committee having jurisdiction over and an assembly committee dealing with transportation matters as determined by the speaker of the assembly and the president pro tempore of the senate acting. The committees may act jointly for their in granting approval.

SECTION 35. 144.50 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.50 (10) No A rule adopted under this section shall become effective not take effect until approved by majority votes of the a senate committee on natural resources and the an assembly committee on dealing with environmental quality protection.

SECTION 36. 146.35 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

146.35 (8) RULES. The secretary may promulgate adopt all rules necessary for the administration of this section and prescribe emergency medical service equipment and standards therefor. Rules A rule adopted by the secretary under this section shall not be effective take effect until approved by the a senate committee on health, education and welfare and the an assembly committee on dealing with health and social services.

SECTION 37. 194.41 (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 29, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

194.41 (4) The department shall prescribe adopt rules for the administration and enforcement of this section and the administrator secretary may appoint any employee in the department as a representative to affix the administrator's secretary's signature, including any facsimile signature adopted by the administrator secretary, to administrative letters, notices and orders to enforce this section. Before any rules A rule adopted under this section shall not take effect, such rules must be until approved by the majority votes of the members of the a senate commerce committee and the an assembly committee dealing with transportation committee.

SECTION 38. 234.02 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

234.02 (1) There is created a public body corporate and politic to be known as the "Wisconsin housing finance authority". The members of the authority shall be the secretary of local affairs and development, and 6 public members appointed nominated by the governor by, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, for staggered 4-year terms commencing on the dates their predecessors' terms expire. At least one such public member shall be a person recommended by the commissioner of savings and loan, at least one a person recommended by the commissioner of banking, and at least one a person recommended by the executive director of the investment board. Of the first 6 public members, 2 shall serve terms expiring on January 1, 1974, 2 shall serve terms expiring on January 1, 1975, and 2 shall serve terms expiring on January 1, 1976. In addition, the chairperson chairpersons of the assembly committee on municipalities and the chairperson of the senate committee on urban committees dealing with local affairs shall serve as members of the authority. A member of the authority shall receive no compensation for services but shall be reimbursed for necessary expenses, including travel expenses, incurred in the discharge of duties. Subject to the bylaws of the authority respecting resignations, each member shall hold office until a successor has been appointed and has qualified. A certificate of appointment or reappointment of any member shall be filed with the authority and the certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the due and proper appointment of the members.

SECTION 39. 758.13 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 187, laws of 1977, is amended to read:

758.13 (1) MEMBERSHIP; APPOINTMENT; TERMS. There is created a judicial council of 19 members as follows: A a supreme court justice designated by the supreme court; a court of appeals judge designated by the court of appeals; the administrative director of courts or a representative of the office designated by the administrative director his or her designee; a circuit judge designated by the board of circuit judges; a county judge designated by the board of county judges; a judge designated by the board of criminal court judges; a juvenile court judge designated by the board of juvenile court judges; the chairperson chairpersons of the senate judiciary and consumer affairs committee or a member of the committee designated by the chairperson; the chairperson of and the assembly judiciary committee committees dealing with judicial affairs or a member of the each such committee designated by the respective chairperson; the attorney general or a representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general his or her designee; the revisor of statutes or an assistant designated by the revisor; the deans of the law schools of the university of Wisconsin and Marquette university or a member of the respective law school faculties to be designated by said the deans; the president-elect of the state bar of Wisconsin or a member of the board of governors of the state bar designated by the president-elect

and 3 additional members thereof selected by the state bar, to serve 3-year terms; and 2 citizens at large appointed by the governor. ~~The last 5 members shall~~ to serve 3-year terms. The names of the members shall be certified to the secretary of state by the executive secretary. Members shall hold office until their successors have been selected. ~~The members of the council~~ Members shall receive no compensation, but shall be reimbursed from the appropriation made by s. 20.645 (1) for expenses necessarily incurred by them in attending council meetings of the council.
